
 
RFP Reference No.: ITSD/FC/RFP/2022/01 Date: 26-Apr-2022 

Request for Proposal (RFP) for Engagement of an Agency for Providing State-of-the-Art Facilitation 
Centre Services to Bureau of Indian Standards 

Responses to Bidder’s Queries 
 

Sr. 
No. 

RFP Clause 
Contents as in RFP requiring 
clarifications 

Query or Points of 
clarifications required 

Response 

1 
S No 3 (A)(4) & 
3 (A)(5) 

Experience 
 
Bidder shall have experience of providing 
call centre or BPO services on turnkey 
basis to at least one Government 
Ministries or Department or PSUs or 
Nationalized Banks in India: 
 
a. Call centre or BPO services should have 
been LIVE for at least 1 year. 
b. Call centre or BPO services of at least 
25 seats. 
 
Bidder Type 
Bidder should be either 
1. An original software developer or OEM 
for platform based on Artificial 
Intelligence (AI), Machine Learning (ML) 
and Natural Language Processing (NLP), 
OR 
2. An authorized partner of such original 
software developer or OEM for platform 
based on Artificial Intelligence (AI), 
Machine Learning (ML) and Natural 

As per the experience criteria of the RFP at 
S No 3(A)(4), the Original Software 
Developer, who is not into the business of 
running call center or BPO, is not eligible. 
However, at S No 3(A)(5) of the RFP, 
Original Software Developer can be the 
bidder. 
 
Its pertinent to mention here that Original 
Software Developer companies are 
generally not into the business of 
operating call centers/BPOs. Therefore, in 
the present situation, Original Software 
Developers can not directly bid for this 
RFP. Also, to be noted that number of 
executive required is just 05 in this RFP and 
therefore manpower component of the 
RFP is very less compared to the 
technology component. 
 
We request the buyer to bifurcate the RFP 
into two parts. One RFP for the technology 
and maintenance wherein Original 
Software Developers are eligible. Second 

As per the RFP 



Language Processing (NLP). Valid proof of 
the authorization to be provided along 
with the bid 
 
OR 
 
3. Partner of similar open-source 
platforms. 

RFP can be for the call center/BPO 
manpower/hardware/operations This 
approach would have multiple benefits for 
the buyer including flexibility, efficiency, 
and cost reduction. In such scenario buyer 
would have flexibility to change, scale, and 
absorb new technology without disturbing 
the whole set up. Buyer would also have 
the option to change the manpower in 
case not satisfied with the performance. 

2 13 

AI based Chatbot: A text as well as speech 
based chatbot with deep learning 
capabilities for delivery of desired 
information about various activities of the 
Bureau to the caller. Chatbot should be 
WhatsApp, Web Application (browser) 
and Mobile App enabled. 

Please confirm if Voice support in text is a 
mandatory requirement. 

Requirement is clearly 
defined in RFP so please 
refer the document. 

3 13 

Interactive Voice Response System (IVRS): 
A “key press input” and “speech to text” 
enabled IVRS with multi-lingual language 
selection option will not only act as a filter 
options but also to act as conversational, 
informative, and transactional based 
system for the callers to solve most of 
their queries through IVR systems. 

As per our understanding Inbound 
Voicebot is required with Agent assistance.  
If bot is unable to understand, the call 
needs to be transferred to Live Agent.  
 
Buyer to confirm if our understanding is 
correct. 

Yes 

4 13 

In-Bound and Out-Bound Calls: A 
dedicated telephone lines for making 
outbound calls and receiving inbound 
calls with state-of-the-art auto-dialers and 
inbound call distribution systems. 

Please confirm if Voicebot is only required 
for Inbound or for outbound call as well.  
 
If Yes, please share the required flow for 
outbound and inbound voicebot. 

Voicebot is required for 
inbound calls only. 

5 13 
SMS and e-Mail: Facility for SMS and e-
Mail for sending promotional messages, 
awareness campaigns, notifications, 

SMS: Please confirm if it is only outbound 
SMS or Inbound SMS support is also 
required.  
 

SMS and eMail will be only 
outbound. 



confirmations, reference numbers, status 
etc. 

Email: Please confirm if Bulk Email is also a 
requirement. Also is it only outbound Email 
or Inbound Email support is also required. 

6 18 

h. During voice interactions (voice-only 
and voice combined chat) the Chatbot 
should give cues when a user is required 
to respond: 
1. Prompt at the right time and not 
assume that the user knows what to do. 
2. The options prompted to the user 
should be clear and concise. 
3. The options presented to the user 
should be limited and planned. 

Is this feature is required only in case of 
Voicebot or required for Chatbot as well? 
 
Please confirm. 

Requirement is clearly 
defined in RFP so please 
refer the document. 

7 20 

vii. Language support 
The Chatbot shall support English, Hindi, 
Hinglish (English & Hindi mix) and other 
Indian languages as mentioned in the 
Table at clause 5-F of this RFP. 

Please do confirm other regional 
languages. 

Requirement is clearly 
defined in RFP so please 
refer the document. 

8 20 

Handling of voice interaction 
During voice interactions on phones, the 
Chatbot shall ensure proper handling such 
as switching between the phone call and 
interaction with the Chatbot, holding the 
voice interaction to attend the call and 
return to the same point in conversation 
etc. 

Agent Side:  
Agent will be able to handle Voice and 
Chat at the same time using same 
interface.  
 
Customer Side:  
In case of consumer Mobile App, this need 
to be maintained by Indian Bureau of 
Standards (Mobile App Developer) 
 
Buyer to confirm/clarify. 

Service Provider to provide 
code, script and API which 
will be implemented in BIS 
websites, Mobile Apps; 
rest everything is to be 
managed by the Service 
Provider 

9 20 

Export or Upload or Download Facility. 
The solution shall have export facility in 
which solution shall enable the Bureau 
officials to export various (data analytics) 
reports, user information, statistics etc. b. 

Please confirm if it is ok if we provide 
Reports in CSV, XLS, PDF and HTML format. 

Report export shall be in 
CSV, XLS, DOC, PDF 
formats. 



The solution shall support the upload and 
download of files in multiple formats like 
Adobe acrobat files, MS Excel files, MS 
Word files etc. 
c. Any other file-format as required by the 
Bureau in due course of time. 

10 20 

Recording of calls 
a. Service Provider will deploy technical 
capability for automatic recording of 
100% calls done to customers or received 
from customers. Screen recording shall be 
done for 20% of the cases on random 
basis. 

Instead of 20% can we have number of 
count of calls where screen recording 
needs to be done.  
 
Also please confirm do you want 
supervisor to decide which call screen 
recording to be done or it can be system 
driven random calls.  

Service provider to decide 
the count of the calls for 
which screen recording is 
to be done in compliance 
to the RFP clause.  
 
Screen recording should 
be system driven random 
calls.  

11 21 

Feedback of callers 
a. User feedback shall be captured at the 
end of the call or chat session. Service 
provider shall ensure that: 

In case of Chat, Once Chat gets ended 
Feedback form will be sent to the 
customer.  
 
In case of Voice, Agent can manually 
transfer the call to feedback IVR to get the 
feedback collected.  
 
Buyer to confirm if its okey. 

In case of chat, user 
should be provided link for 
sharing feedback at the 
end of the chat. 
 
In case of call, user should 
be forwarded to IVR for 
sharing feedback. 

12 21 

SMS and e-Mail Services  
The State-of-the-Art Facilitation Centre 
Services shall also provide the facility of 
sending bulk SMSs and e-Mails for 
running awareness campaign 

Please confirm whether only Bulk SMS is 
required, or Bulk Email is also an ask. 

Requirement is clearly 
defined in RFP so please 
refer the document. 

13 22 

Analytics integration: The Chatbot and 
Auto-dialer and inbound call distribution 
system shall be seamlessly integrable with 
common monitoring and analysis module 
passing on complete information.  

Please confirm what all information you 
want us to pass on your Monitoring and 
Analytical tool.  
Also please confirm if they can provide us 

Requirement is clearly 
defined in RFP so please 
refer the document. 



an API on which we can pass requested 
information. 

14 24 

6. components: 
i. AI based Chatbot (WhatsApp, Web 
Application or Web Site and Mobile App 
enabled) 
ii. Interactive Voice Response System 
(IVRS) and manual in-bound and out-
bound calling 
iii. SMS and e-Mail 

Please confirm number of Agents those 
who are going to handle Chat, Email and 
Voice. How many users will be handling 
Chats? How many users will handle Voice? 
How many will work on Email Request? 

1. BIS will be requiring 
dedicated agents for in-
bound and out-bound call 
handling purpose.  
2. No agent is required to 
handle chat as AI, ML and 
NLP enabled chatbot shall 
be able to handle the chat 
independently and shall 
forward to agent in case of 
failure to understand the 
user requirement. 
3. No dedicated agent is 
required to handle emails 
as BIS will not be sending 
bulk emails on daily basis. 
Bidder to quote bundled 
rate in financial bid. 

15 24 b. Provide true caller business id. 
Please confirm if True Caller Subscription is 
also required. 

Requirement is clearly 
defined in RFP so please 
refer the document. 

16 24 

e. The telephone lines shall be on the 
names of the Bureau which will be 
transferred to the Bureau or replacement 
Service Provider during exit management 
phase. 

Can Bureau provide us PRI/ SIP lines? 
Please confirm. 

Requirement is clearly 
defined in RFP so please 
refer the document. 

17 

3. Eligibility 
Criteria, Page 
No 14 

The unique users for the Chatbot should 
be at least 50,000 (fifty thousand). 

Request you to please remove the same 
clause which is restricted to no of users. 
Kindly amend the same as bidder should 
have expertise of chatbot. As per the RFP 



18 
Bidder Type 
(Point 5) 

An original software developer or OEM 
for platform based on Artificial 
Intelligence (AI), Machine Learning (ML) 
and Natural Language Processing (NLP), 
Or 
An authorized partner of such original 
software developer or OEM for platform 
based on Artificial Intelligence (AI), 
Machine Learning (ML) and Natural 
Language Processing (NLP). Valid proof of 
the authorization to be provided along 
with the bid 
Or 
Partner of similar open-source platforms 

Can bidder use open-source software to 
comply the same clause. 

Requirement is clearly 
defined in RFP so please 
refer the document. 

19 NOTE Consortium is not allowed Kindly Allow Consortium as well.  As per the RFP 

20 Experience 

Bidder shall have experience of 
implementing AI enabled Chatbot 
Solution to at least one Government 
Ministries or Department or PSUs or 
Nationalized Banks in India on turnkey 
basis: 
a. Chatbot should have been LIVE for at 
least 1 year. 
b. The unique users for the Chatbot 
should be at least 50,000 (fifty thousand). 

Please allow to show case experience with 
private customers /corporates.  As per the RFP 

21 

Page No -20  
(ix. Handling of 
voice 
interaction) 

During voice interactions on phones, the 
Chatbot shall ensure proper handling such 
as switching between the phone call and 
interaction with the Chatbot, holding the 
voice interaction to attend the call and 
return to the same point in conversation 
etc. 

Need more clarity on this point 

The chatbot shall ensure 
proper handling of 
conversation while 
switching the user 
between the chat/voice 
chat and phone calls i.e., 
holding the chat/voice 
chat and transferring the 
call to the next available 



executives and return the 
conversation to the same 
point where it was left at 
the time of switching. 

22 

Page No -20  
(ii. Recording of 
calls) 

a. Service Provider will deploy technical 
capability for automatic recording of 
100% calls done to customers or received 
from customers. Screen recording shall be 
done for 20% of the cases on random 
basis. 

Is screen recording mandatory or we can 
provide the solution without screen 
recording? 

As per the RFP 

23 

Page No -20  
(iii. Monitoring 
of calls) 

a. All the caller issues shall be recorded in 
the system and be escalated to the 
designated officer of the Bureau. 

It's not in our scope. SI partner need to 
propose the 3rd Party Ticking CRM, like 
Zoho Desk, Fresh Desk, etc. 

As per the RFP 

24 

Page No -24 
(i. General 
requirements) 

d. A CRM solution shall be deployed with 
supervisor access to the Bureau for view 
real-time status. 

It's not in our scope. SI partner need to 
propose the 3rd Party Ticking CRM, like 
Zoho Desk, Fresh Desk, etc. 

As per the RFP 

25 

Page No -24 
(i. General 
requirements) 

e. The telephone lines shall be on the 
names of the Bureau which will be 
transferred to the Bureau or replacement 
Service Provider during exit management 
phase. 

We are assuming the TFN only would be 
procured on the name the Bureau because 
we are the cloud based solution provider 
so the PRI and SIP will already be in place. 

As BIS is looking for 
services on turnkey basis, 
Service Provider to decide 
the best way of providing 
quality services as per the 
requirements of the RFP. 

26 

Page No -48  
(B. Eligible 
Bidders) 

iv. No consortium or Joint Venture is 
allowed to participate in the bidding 
Process. 

Is BIS using any CRM or the service 
provider will need to provide it? 

BIS is not using any CRM. 
 
As BIS is looking for 
services on turnkey basis, 
Service Provider to decide 
the best way of providing 
quality services as per the 
requirements of the RFP. 

27 

Page No -33  
(i. General 
Requirements) 

c. Service Provider shall deploy properly 
trained and skilled manpower to ensure 
seamless operations of the State-of-the-
Art Facilitation Centre Services. 

Need more clarity on this point. Who will 
going to provide the manpower is it from 
BIS side or the service Provider will need to 
take care of that part? 

As BIS is looking for 
services on turnkey basis, 
Service Provider to deploy 
manpower for handling 



inbound and outbound 
calls directly received from 
the users or calls 
generated by the Chatbot. 

28 
Bidders shall submit Original Software Developer/OEM/Manufacturers Authorization Form wherever applicable along with technical 
bid. 

 


